
 
 

 

July 16, 2020 
 
The Honorable Charles P. Rettig 
Commissioner 
Internal Revenue Service 
1111 Constitution Avenue Northwest 
Washington, DC 20224 
 
Dear Commissioner Rettig: 
 
We write to request your timely attention and assistance for our constituents facing problems accessing 
their Economic Impact Payments (EIP). We recognize that the payout of EIPs has been an unprecedented 
undertaking for the IRS, particularly amidst staffing shortages and office closures. Further, we recognize 
that millions of Americans have successfully received their EIP with little or no difficulty, either by direct 
deposit or mail.  
 
That said, we have several constituents who are facing increased financial hardship as the COVID-19 
pandemic continues and are still waiting for their EIP, or waiting for an error in the EIP to be resolved. 
While the IRS claims that all issues may ultimately be resolved with 2020 tax filings in the next calendar 
year, for many of our constituents, that wait is simply untenable. 
 
While the IRS has made a good faith effort to provide timely and updated information on their website, 
our constituents continue to express their frustration that the information available does not provide 
enough clarification. Additionally, some constituents do not have access to the internet or a personal 
computer to utilize the tools available to enter payment information and track payment status. Many of 
our constituents are uncomfortable with submitting their information online for fear of data security 
breaches, which is an understandable concern considering widespread ID fraud efforts. Those constituents 
are increasingly dissatisfied with the IRS EIP telephone assistance number, which often has too high a 
call volume and too little information to allow for a productive conversation. Ultimately, we are 
concerned that the general information provided is not sufficient to address the unique and highly 
individualized situations that our constituents are facing. 
 
Because of the diversity of unique problems that individuals are facing with EIPs, the IRS has opened a 
congressional inquiries email inbox to address constituent claims that come into our offices. While the 
intent of this staff-only inbox is appreciated, it has become clear from our casework staff’s experiences 
that the line is not adequately staffed to address the volume of claims that have been received. 
Caseworkers across offices claim that information that constituents receive in response to those inquiries 
are simply reiterations of publicly available information – if they receive a response at all. The following 
are a sample of issues that constituents are encountering, for which we would appreciate a response: 
 

• Individuals who filed paper returns for 2019 are concerned that the delay in processing paper 
returns, due to the closure of IRS facilities, is also delaying their EIP. If they do not have tax 
information on file for a previous year, they are encouraged not to re-enter their information into 



 

the IRS website, effectively placing them in limbo until their return is processed. The IRS has not 
clarified when paper returns will be processed. 

• Individuals with deceased spouses on record are having their EIP erroneously withheld, due to an 
error on the part of the Bureau of Fiscal Services (BFS) that marked a “debt” on the late spouse’s 
record, rather than “deceased.” BFS admits to this mistake, but constituents have still found it 
difficult to resolve when access to a live technician via the IRS phone line is rare. 

• Individuals have expressed confusion with the lack of information available from the “Get My 
Payment Tool.” The answer “Payment Status Not Available” that is generated for a payment that 
hasn’t yet been processed and mailed is the same answer that is generated if a taxpayer is 
ineligible for a payment, but there is no clarification as to which scenario applies to the individual 
utilizing the tool. 

• Individuals have expressed confusion as to why their payment is not being direct-deposited, 
despite having their direct deposit information on file. The IRS does not provide clear 
information on how they are making determinations on payment method. This applies also to 
those individuals who have received prepaid cards in lieu of a check. 

• Individuals continue to have difficulty accessing the “Get My Payment” tool, being told that the 
information they enter does not match IRS records despite every attempt to confirm the 
information they are inputting. There is no recourse for individuals who cannot access this tool, 
and no indication as to why the information within the IRS’s system is different than the 
information the taxpayer is entering. 

 
If we were able to escalate each constituent facing one of these, or many other issues, and receive a timely 
and clear individual response on that constituent’s payment status, we would do so. However, the 
congressional pathway to escalate constituent claims is too overwhelmed to sufficiently address these 
concerns, and large-scale issues persist.  
 
Given the proper tools to resolve individual taxpayer issues, our offices can be a vital resource to the IRS 
in times of extraordinary levels of constituent communication. We can assist in triage of constituent 
claims, pass on helpful information, and highlight issues for the agency’s attention that constituents 
continue to face. But, for this to happen, we need your help. We urge your agency to expand its capacity 
for casework assistance to EIP claims, and to resolve the issues raised above in a fair and timely manner. 
When IRS telephone assistance resumes at a normal scale, we remain hopeful that telephone assistors will 
have the capacity to respond to and resolve constituent EIP issues in a timely and satisfactory manner. 
 
Thank you for your timely attention to these matters. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 

 

 

Suzan K. DelBene Denny Heck Jackie Walorski Cathy McMorris Rodgers 
Member of Congress Member of Congress Member of Congress Member of Congress 
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Alma S. Adams, Ph.D. (NC-12) John B. Larson (CT-01) 
Colin Z. Allred (TX-32) Robert E. Latta (OH-05) 
Troy Balderson (OH-12) Al Lawson (FL-05) 
Karen Bass (CA-37) Debbie Lesko (AZ-08) 
Joyce Beatty (OH-03) Mike Levin (CA-49) 
Sanford D. Bishop, Jr. (GA-02) Ted W. Lieu (CA-33) 
Earl Blumenauer (OR-03) Daniel W. Lipinski (IL-03) 
Suzanne Bonamici (OR-01) Elaine G. Luria (VA-02) 
Brendan F. Boyle (PA-02) Carolyn Maloney (NY-12) 
Cheri Bustos (IL-17) Kenny Marchant (TX-24) 
Bradley Byrne (AL-01) Roger Marshall, M.D. (KS-01) 
Tony Cárdenas (CA-29) Doris Matsui (CA-06) 
André Carson (IN-07) Michael T. McCaul (TX-10) 
Matt Cartwright (PA-08) Jerry McNerney (CA-09) 
Ed Case (HI-01) Grace Meng (NY-06) 
Sean Casten (IL-06) Paul Mitchell (MI-10) 
Joaquin Castro (TX-20) Gwen Moore (WI-04) 
Judy Chu (CA-27) Joseph D. Morelle (NY-25) 
David N. Cicilline (RI-01) Stephanie Murphy (FL-07) 
Steve Cohen (TN-09) Grace F. Napolitano (CA-32) 
Bonnie Watson Coleman (NJ-12) Joe Neguse (CO-02) 
Gerald E. Connolly (VA-11) Ralph Norman (SC-05) 
Jim Costa (CA-16) Tom O'Halleran (AZ-01) 
Angie Craig (MN-02) Jimmy Panetta (CA-20) 
Charlie Crist (FL-13) Chris Pappas (NH-01) 
Joe Cunningham (SC-01) Chellie Pingree (ME-01) 
Peter A. DeFazio (OR-04) Mark Pocan (WI-02) 
Mike Doyle (PA-18) Ayanna Pressley (MA-07) 
Neal P. Dunn, M.D. (FL-02) David E. Price (NC-04) 
Adriano Espaillat (NY-13) Jamie Raskin (MD-08) 
Abby Finkenauer (IA-01) Tom Reed (NY-23) 
Brian Fitzpatrick (PA-01) Harley Rouda (CA-48) 
Bill Flores (TX-17) Tim Ryan (OH-13) 
Jeff Fortenberry (NE-01) Linda T. Sanchez (CA-38) 
Bill Foster (IL-11) Mary Gay Scanlon (PA-05) 
Ruben Gallego (AZ-07) Jan Schakowsky (IL-09) 
Sylvia R. Garcia (TX-29) David Schweikert (AZ-06) 
Vincente Gonzalez (TX-15) Terri A. Sewell (AL-07) 
Josh Gottheimer (NJ-05) Donna E. Shalala (FL-27) 
Morgan Griffith (VA-09) John Shimkus (IL-15) 



 

Raúl M. Grijalva (AZ-03) Elissa Slotkin (MI-08) 
Deb Haaland (NM-01) Adam Smith (WA-09) 
Janana Hayes (CT-05) Abigail D. Spanberger (VA-07) 
Brian Higgins (NY-26) Jackie Speier (CA-14) 
Jim Himes (CT-04) Haley M. Stevens (MI-11) 
Eleanor Holmes Norton (DC-At-large) Thomas R. Suozzi (NY-03) 
Kendra S. Horn (OH-05) Paul D. Tonko (NY-20) 
Marcy Kaptur (OH-09) Xochitl Torres Small (NM-02) 
John Katko (NY-24) David Trone (MD-06) 
Fred Keller (PA-12) Nydia M. Velázquez (NY-07) 
Andy Kim (NJ-03) Peter Welch (VT-At-large) 
Ron Kind (WI-03) Brad R. Wenstrup (OH-02) 
Darin LaHood (IL-18) Susan Wild (PA-07) 
Rick Larsen (WA-02)  

 


